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Independent Auditors’ Report 
TO ThE MEMbERS OF LEEL ELECTRICALS LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of LEEL ELECTRICALS LIMITED (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies  
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder including the accounting and auditing standards 
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that 
give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s 
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS 
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its total 
comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year 
ended on that date.
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Other Matter

The standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017, were audited by other firm of chartered 
accountants under the Companies Act, 2013 who, vide their report dated May 30, 2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on those 
financial statements. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books.

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow 
and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, as applicable.

 (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2018 taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A. 

 (g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies  
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the  information 
and explanations given to us:

  (i) The company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31, 2018 on its financial position in 
its standalone Ind AS financial statements – refer note 36.

  (ii) The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses.

  (iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2018.

  (iv) The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company for the year ended 
March 31, 2018

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section 
(11) of Section 143 of the Act (“the Order”), and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we 
considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure B a statement on 
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Goel Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number 000397N 

Ashok Kumar Agarwal
Place of Signature: New Delhi  Partner
Date:  May 30, 2018  Membership Number 084600
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Annexure A to the Independent  Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 1(f) of the report on other legal and regulatory requirements of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date 
to the members of LEEL Electricals Limited on the standalone Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Act. 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of LEEL ELECTRICALS LIMITED (“the Company”) 
as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with 
reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes 
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
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Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to financial 
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Goel Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number 000397N 

Ashok Kumar Agarwal
Place of Signature: New Delhi  Partner
Date:  May 30, 2018  Membership Number 084600
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Annexure b to the Independent  Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 2 of the report on other legal and regulatory requirements of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date 
to the members of LEEL Electricals Limited on the standalone Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018, 
we report that:

(i) In respect of the Company’s Property, plant and equipment:

 (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed 
assets (Property, plant and equipment and other Intangible assets).

 (b) The Property, plant and equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a phased programme designed 
to cover all the items over a period of one year which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property, plant and equipment has been physically 
verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the examination of 
the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, immovable properties of land that have been taken on lease and 
disclosed as Property, plant and equipment in the standalone Ind AS financial statements, the lease agreements are in the 
name of the Company. The Company does not have any freehold land.

(ii) The physical verification of inventory excluding stocks with third parties have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
Management during the year. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. 
The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to books and records were not material and have 
been appropriately dealt with in the books of accounts.

(iii) The Company has granted unsecured loans to two subsidiary companies, covered in the register maintained under Section 189 
of the Act. The Company has not granted any secured/unsecured loans to firms /LLPs/ other parties covered in the register 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act:

 (a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s 
interest.

 (b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and repayments or receipts of principal 
amounts and interest have been regular as per stipulations for one subsidiary. The other subsidiary has filed insolvency and 
the company has fully provided allowance for doubtful outstanding loan and interest thereon. 

 (c) There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year-end.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of 
section 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of loans and investments made, and guarantees and securities provided by it.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from public within the meaning of Section 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and Rules 
framed there under to the extent notified.

(vi) Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain cost records as specified 
under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion that, prima 
facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination 
of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

 (a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ 
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess, Goods and Service 
Tax (with effect from July 1, 2017), and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

 (b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales 
Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess, Goods and Service Tax (with effect from July 1, 2017), 
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and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they 
became payable.

 (c) Details of dues of Customs Duty and Excise Duty which have not been deposited as at March 31, 2018 on account of dispute 
are given below:

Nature of the
statute

Nature of
dues

Forum where Dispute is Pending Period to which the
Amount Relates

Amount
` Crores

Customs Act,1962 Customs Duty CESTAT, Allahabad 2014-15 0.11

Customs Act,1962 Customs Duty Deputy Commissioner, Custom, 
Noida

2015-16 0.04

Central Excise
Act, 1944

Excise Duty CESTAT, Jaipur 2017-18 1.93

Customs Act,1962 Customs Duty CESTAT, Mumbai 2015-16 46.23

Central Excise Act, 
1944

Excise Duty Commissioner (Appeals) Jaipur 2017-18 0.81

(viii) According to the records of the Company examined by us and information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted during the year in repayment of loans and borrowings to any financial institution or bank. The Company does not have 
any dues to debenture holders or outstanding loans or borrowings from government during the year.

(ix) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the moneys raised by way of term loans have been 
applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. During the year, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or no 
material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid/provided managerial 
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the 
Act.

(xii) As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules,2014 are not applicable to it, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of 
the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly paid 
convertible debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not entered into 
any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Goel Garg & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number 000397N 

Ashok Kumar Agarwal
Place of Signature: New Delhi  Partner
Date:  May 30, 2018  Membership Number 084600
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balance Sheet
AS AT 31ST MARCH 2018

(` In Crores)

Particulars Note 
No.

As at 
31 March 2018

As at 
31 March 2017

ASSETS
Non Current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3  320.15  317.71 
Capital Work in Progress 4  313.23  10.13 
Other Intangible Assets 5  3.29  1.29 
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 6  106.30  108.45 
(ii) Loans 7  1.78  6.90 
(iii) Other Financial Assets 8  0.33  0.20 

 745.08  444.68 
Current Assets
Inventories 9  741.90  992.01 
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 10  658.79  693.60 
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11  19.15  89.65 
(iii) Bank Balance other than (ii) above 12  1.00  0.92 
(iv) Loans 13  9.59  8.13 
(v) Other Financial assets 14  87.90  46.91 
Other Current Assets 15  44.00  64.41 

 1,562.33  1,895.63 
TOTAL ASSETS  2,307.41  2,340.31 

EQUITY AND LIAbILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 16  40.34  40.34 
Other Equity 17  1,265.27  881.01 

 1,305.61  921.35 
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 18  -    50.95 
Long term Provisions 19  78.29  6.82 
Deffered Tax Liabilities (Net) 20  54.72  0.65 

 133.01  58.42 
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21  473.73  1,025.08 
(ii) Trade Payables 22  352.20  133.02 
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 23  9.34  125.67 
Other Current Liabilities 24  17.74  50.26 
Short Term Provisions 25  0.58  6.62 
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)  15.20  19.89 

 868.79  1,360.54 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIAbILITIES  2,307.41  2,340.31 

Accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our Report of even date attached   
For Goel Garg and Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000397N   

Ashok Kumar Agarwal  Mukat B. Sharma  Bharat Raj Punj
Partner  Whole Time Director & CFO  Managing Director & 
Membership No. 084600  (DIN:02942036) Chairman of the Meeting 
         (DIN:01432035) 

  Anita K. Sharma Surjit Krishan Sharma
Place: New Delhi  Company Secretary & VP Finance Director
Dated: 30.05.2018  (FCS 7373) (DIN:00058581)
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Statement of Profit and Loss
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

(` In Crores)

Particulars Note 
No.

For the year ended 
31 March 2018

For the year ended 
31 March 2017

Revenue

Revenue from operations 26  1,962.57  3,022.43 

Other income 27  40.74  1.98 

Total Income  2,003.31  3,024.41 

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 28  1,124.10  2,198.77 

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 29  47.76  270.13 

Changes in inventories of finished goods work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 30  508.58  (62.14)

Excise duty on Sale of goods  11.77  45.12 

Employee benefits expense 31  62.92  96.69 

Finance costs 32  66.55  118.89 

Depreciation and amortization Expense 33  33.35  35.97 

Other expenses 34  102.21  202.01 

Total Expenses  1,957.24  2,905.44 

Profit before exceptional items and tax  46.07  118.97 

Exceptional Items 48  645.23  -   

Profit before tax:  691.30  118.97 

     from continued operation  34.87  118.97 

     from dis-continued operation 48  11.20  -   

     from exceptional items 48  645.23  -   

Profit before tax  691.30  118.97 

Tax expense:

Current tax on: 50  162.06  36.20 

      Continued operation  5.75  36.20 

      Discontinued operation 48  3.36  -   

      Exceptional items 48  152.95  -   

Earlier year tax adjustment  5.31  -   

Deferred tax 50  1.70  (2.37)

Total Tax Expense  169.07  33.83 

Net Profit for the year  522.23  85.14 

     from continued operation  22.11  85.14 

     from dis-continued operation 48  7.84  -   

     from exceptional items 48  492.28  -   

Contd...
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Contd...
Particulars Note 

No.
For the year ended 

31 March 2018
For the year ended 

31 March 2017
Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss 

Fair value of Investment (Gain)  0.63  0.79 

Acturial gain or losses  0.40  (0.68)

Taxes  (0.14)  0.23 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  523.12  85.48 

Earnings per equity share (Face value ₹ 10 each) (for continuing operations 
including exceptional items)

41a

     Basic (in ₹)  127.76  22.18 

     Diluted (in ₹)  127.76  21.20 

Earnings per equity share (Face value ₹ 10 each) (for discontinued 
operations)

41b

     Basic (in ₹)  1.94  -   

     Diluted (in ₹)  1.94  -   

Earnings per equity share (Face value ₹ 10 each) (for discontinued and 
continuing operations including exceptional items)

41c

     Basic (in ₹)  129.71  22.18 

     Diluted (in ₹)  129.71  21.20 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our Report of even date attached   
For Goel Garg and Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000397N   

Ashok Kumar Agarwal  Mukat B. Sharma  Bharat Raj Punj
Partner  Whole Time Director & CFO  Managing Director & 
Membership No. 084600  (DIN:02942036) Chairman of the Meeting 
         (DIN:01432035) 

  Anita K. Sharma Surjit Krishan Sharma
Place: New Delhi  Company Secretary & VP Finance Director
Dated: 30.05.2018  (FCS 7373) (DIN:00058581)
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Statement of Changes in Equity
AS ON 31ST MARCH 2018

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars No. of Shares (` in crores)
Balance as at 31st March 2016*  36,205,260  36.21 
Changes in Equity Share Capital  4,127,000  4.13 
As at March 31, 2017  40,332,260  40.34 
Changes in Equity Share Capital  -    -   
As at March 31, 2018  40,332,260  40.34 

* Amount includes ` 64,500 towards shares forfeited during previous years.

B. Other Equity 
(` In Crores)

Particulars Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive 
Income

Total 
Other 
EquityEquity 

Component 
of Other 
Financial 

Instruments  
(Share 

Warrants)

Capital 
Reserve 
(Share 

Warrant 
Forefeited by 
the Company)

 Securities 
Premiume 

Account 

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earning

Fair Value 
of Invest-

ment

Revaluation 
Reserve 

(Land Reval-
ued as on 

31st March 
1993)

Acturial 
Gain & 
Losses 
on re-

tirement 
benefits

Balance as at 31st March 2016  19.44  11.25  211.64  217.72  297.39  0.60  0.23  -   758.27 
Profit for the Year  -    -    -    -    85.14  -    -    -    85.14 
Transfer Share Warrant into Shares  (19.44)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   (19.44)
Premium Amount from Coversion 
of Warrants

 -    -    58.60  -    -    -    -    -    58.60 

Addition in Fair Value of Investment  -    -    -    -    -    0.79  -    -    0.79 
Acturial Gain & Loss  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (0.44)  (0.44)
Share Warrant Forfeited  -    3.75  -    -    -    -    -    -    3.75 
Dividend (Including Dividend 
Distribution Tax)

 -    -    -    -    (5.66)  -    -    -    (5.66)

Transfer to Reserve  -    -    -    30.00  (30.00)  -    -    -    -   
Balance as at 31st March 2017  -    15.00  270.24  247.72  346.87  1.39  0.23  (0.44) 881.01 
Profit for the Year  -    -    -    -    522.23  -    -    -   522.23 
Addition in Fair Value of Investment  -    -    -    -    -    0.63  -    -    0.63 
Acturial Gain & Loss  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    0.26  0.26 
Special Dividend (including Dividend 
Tax)

 -    -    -    -    (97.09)  -    -    -   (97.09)

Deferred tax (earlier year)  -    -    -    -    (34.49)  -    -    -   (34.49)
Dividend (Including Dividend 
Distribution Tax)

 -    -    -    -    (7.28)  -    -    -    (7.28)

Balance as at 31st March 2018  -    15.00  270.24  247.72  730.24  2.02  0.23  (0.18)  1,265.27 

As per our Report of even date attached   
For Goel Garg and Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000397N   

Ashok Kumar Agarwal  Mukat B. Sharma  Bharat Raj Punj
Partner  Whole Time Director & CFO  Managing Director & 
Membership No. 084600  (DIN:02942036) Chairman of the Meeting 
         (DIN:01432035) 

  Anita K. Sharma Surjit Krishan Sharma
Place: New Delhi  Company Secretary & VP Finance Director
Dated: 30.05.2018  (FCS 7373) (DIN:00058581)
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Statement of Cash Flow
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

(` In Crores)

Particulars For the Year ended     
31 March 2018

For the Year ended       
31 March 2017

A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
1 Profit Before Tax 

Profit before tax 
-from continuing operation including exceptional items  680.10  118.97 
-from discontinued operation  11.20  -   

2 Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization Expense  33.35  35.98 
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipments (net)  0.19  (0.07)
Acturial gain or losses  0.40  (0.68)
Life time credit risk on trade receivables  1.60  0.27 
Allowance for doubtful Advance recoverable in cash and kind or for value to be Recovered 
(Related party) - Noske-Kaeser Rail & Vehicle Germany GmbH

 1.29  -   

Allowance for doubtful loans to Noske-Kaeser Rail and Vehicle Germany GmbH  12.54  -   
Impairment in the value of investment - Noske-Kaeser Rail & Vehicle Germany GmbH  3.75  -   
Finance costs  66.55  118.89 
Dividend income  (0.02)  (0.02)
Deferred tax liability on provision in e-waste  17.75  -   
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/loss(net)  5.78  -   
Loss/(gain) arising on financial assets/liabilities as at fair value through profit and loss  -    0.04 
Interest Income  (10.21)  (1.32)

3 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (1+2)  824.27  272.06 

4 Net Change in:
Trade Receivables  33.20  (96.46)
Inventories  250.09  (115.09)
Non-current and current other financial assets  (41.12)  0.60 
Non-current and current Security deposit  1.01  0.13 
Other Bank balances  (0.07)  0.25 
Other Non-current and current assets  19.12  (36.20)
Trade Payable  213.42  19.87 
Other Current financial liabilities  (87.65)  2.53 
Other current liabilities  (32.53)  39.81 
Non-current and current provisions  65.44  5.03 
Change in Working Capital  420.91  (179.53)

5 Cash Generated from Operating Activities  (3+4)  1,245.18  92.53 

6 Taxes Paid  (172.06)  (21.80)
7 Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (5-6)  1,073.12  70.73 

b Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment  (30.73)  (31.68)
Purchase of other intangible assets  (2.85)  -   
Payment of Capital Work in Progress  (313.23)  (3.43)
Proceeds from disposal of Property, plant & equipment  5.04  0.09 
Proceeds from disposal of other intangible assets  0.69  -   
Purchase of Investments  (0.97)  (2.73)
Loan given  (9.90)  -   
Interest received  10.21  1.32 
Dividend received  0.02  0.02 
Net Cash Generated/(Used) in Investing Activities:  (341.72)  (36.41)

Contd...
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Contd...
C Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital  -    47.05 
(Repayment)/Proceeds from working capital loan  (551.35)  126.77 
Repayment of term loan  (79.23)  (36.78)
Repayment of subsidiary loan  -    (21.97)
Repayment of vehicle loan  (0.40)  (0.55)
Interest paid  (66.55)  (118.89)
Dividends paid (including dividend tax)  (104.37)  (5.66)
Net Cash Generated/(Used) from Financing Activities:  (801.90)  (10.03)

D Net Change in Cash & cash equivalents  (A+B+C)  (70.50)  24.28 
E Net increase/ decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (for discontinued and continuing 

operations  including exceptional items)
 (70.50)  24.28 

Net increase/ decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (for continuing operations including 
exceptional items)

 (78.34)  -   

Net increase/ decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (for discontinued operations)  7.84 -
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents  89.65 65.37
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents  19.15  89.65 
The Amendment Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statements requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements 
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non cash changes, 
suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing 
activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. This amendment has become effective from 1st April, 2017.

As per our Report of even date attached   
For Goel Garg and Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000397N   

Ashok Kumar Agarwal  Mukat B. Sharma  Bharat Raj Punj
Partner  Whole Time Director & CFO  Managing Director & 
Membership No. 084600  (DIN:02942036) Chairman of the Meeting 
         (DIN:01432035) 

  Anita K. Sharma Surjit Krishan Sharma
Place: New Delhi  Company Secretary & VP Finance Director
Dated: 30.05.2018  (FCS 7373) (DIN:00058581)

As at  
31 March 2017

 Cash Flow Non Cash 
Changes

As at  
31 March 2018

79.23  -    (79.23)  -    -   
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Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

1. Corporate Information

 LEEL Electricals Limited (Formerly known as Lloyd Electric & Engineering Limited) is a public Company domiciled in India and 
incorporated under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. Its shares are listed on National Stock Exchange of India 
Limited (NSE) & BSE Limited (BSE) in India. The Company is the largest manufacturer of heat exchangers coils in India

2. Significant Accounting Policies

 2.1 Basis of preparation

  The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ( IND AS) 
notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rule 2015 (as amended from time to time) and other relevant provision of the Act. The financial statements have been 
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities:

  i) Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value

  ii) Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value. 

 2.2 Current versus non-current classification

  The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non- current classification. An asset is 
treated as current when it is:

  - Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

  -  Held primarily for purpose of trading

  -  Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

  -  cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 
after the reporting period

  All other assets are classified as non-current.

  A liability is current when:

  -  It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

  -  It is held primarily for purpose of trading

  -  It is due to be settled within twelve months after the Reporting period, or

  - There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period.

  All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

  For the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Company has ascertained its   normal 
operating cycle as twelve months. This is based on nature of service and the between the acquisition of assets or inventories 
for the processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents.

 2.3 Use of Estimates

  The preparation of financial statements require estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount 
of asset and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of the revenue and the expenses 
during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the 
results are known / materialized.
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 2.4 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

  An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an assets is measured on initial recognition at cost.

  PPE are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The initial cost of PPE 
comprise purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly attributable and related to acquisition 
and installation of the concerned assets and are further adjusted by the amount of input tax credit availed wherever 
applicable., net of less accumulated depreciation and location for its intended use, including borrowing costs relating to the 
qualified asset over the period up to the date the assets are put to use is included in cost of relevant assets. 

  All other expenditure related to existing assets including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of 
replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period during which such expenditure is incurred.

  The carrying amount of a property, plant and equipment is de-recognized when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use or on disposal.

  Machine spares that can be used only in connection with an item of fixed asset and their use is expected for more than one 
year are capitalized. 

  The Company had elected to consider the carrying value of all its property plant & equipment appearing in the financial 
statement prepared in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Company act 2013, read 
together with rule 7 of the companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and used the same as deemed cost in the opening Ind AS 
balance sheet prepared on 1st April, 2015.

  Depreciation on property plant and equipment is provided on straight line method based on estimated useful life of assets 
as prescribed in schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follow:-

Class of Assets Rate of Depreciation

Buildings 30 Years

Plant & Machinery 15 Years

Office Equipment 5 Years

Furniture & Fixtures 10 Years

Vehicles 8 Years

  The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases, if any, is depreciated over the asset’s useful life or   over 
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain 
ownership at the end of the lease term.

  Depreciation on the assets purchased during the year is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of purchase of the assets.

  Gains and losses on de-recognition/disposals are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of those assets. Gains and Losses if any, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss on de-recognition 
or disposal as the case may be. 

  Capital Work-in-Progress

  Cost of assets not ready for intended use, on the balance sheet date is shown as capital work in progress.

  Projects under commissioning and other Capital Work-in-Progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related 
incidental expenses and attributable interest.

 2.5 Intangible Assets

  Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

  The cost of an intangible asset includes purchase cost (net of rebates and discounts), including any import duties and non-
refundable taxes, and any directly attributable costs on making the asset ready for its intended use.
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  The Cost of Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life which is as follows:

  Product Development Expenses

  Cost of Product Development expenses will be amortized over its useful life of 5 Years.

  The Company had elected to consider the carrying value of all its intangible assets appearing in the financial statement 
prepared in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Company act 2013, read together 
with rule 7 of the companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and used the same as deemed cost in the opening Ind AS balance sheet 
prepared on 1st April, 2015.

  The amortization period and method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset 
is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.

  An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use. Gains and 
losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized or 
on disposal.

 2.6 Impairment of tangible assets and intangible assets

  At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication based on internal/ external factors that those assets have suffered an impairment 
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent 
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise 
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can 
be identified.

  Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least 
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

  Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been 
adjusted.

  If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized 
immediately in profit or loss.

  The impairment loss recognized in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of 
recoverable amount

 2.7 Inventories

  a) Basis of valuation 

   Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing cost of obsolescence, if any. However, 
materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished 
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The comparison of cost and net 
realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis.  

  b) Method of valuation

   Raw materials and consumables has been determined by using weighted average cost method and comprises all cost 
of purchase, freight costs, customs duty (wherever paid) taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from Tax 
authorities) and all other cost incurred in beginning the inventory to their present location and condition. The cost is 
determined using the Weighted Average Method.
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  Work in progress include direct and indirect materials, direct and indirect labour and other manufacturing overheads 
incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition.

  Finished goods includes direct and indirect materials, direct and indirect labour and other manufacturing overheads incurred 
in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis.

  Stock in transit lying in customs warehouse does not include custom duty payable, however, non-provision of duty does not 
affect the profit for the year.

 2.8 Foreign Exchange Transactions

  These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency Transactions 
in foreign currency are recorded on initial recognition at the spot rate prevailing at the time of the transaction.

  At the end of each reporting period

  Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.

  Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing 
at the date when the fair value was determined.

  Non-monetary items that are measured terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated

  Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different 
from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements are 
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

  Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

  Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which 
are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency 
borrowings

  The exchange differences arising on reporting of long term foreign currency monetary items at rates different from those 
at which they were initially recorded in so far as they relate to the acquisition of depreciable capital assets are shown by 
addition to/deduction from the cost of the assets as per exemption provided under IND AS 21 read along with Ind AS 101 
appendix ‘D’ clause-D13AA.

  Exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation which settlement is neither 
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the investment in the foreign operation), which are recognized initially 
in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

 2.9 Borrowing Cost

  Borrowing costs specifically relating to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset that necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are 
charged to profit & loss account in the period in which it is incurred except loan processing fees which is recognized as per 
Effective Interest Rate method. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that Company incurs in connection with 
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the 
borrowing costs.

 2.10 Employee Benefits

  Contribution to Provident fund/Pension fund: Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund / Pension Schemes 
are defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the Profit & Loss Account in the year when the 
contributions to the respective funds become due. The Company has no obligation other than contribution payable to these 
funds.

  Gratuity liability and leave encashment is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial 
valuation made at the end of each financial year on using the projected unit credit method. However, The Company is in 
process of having arrangement with Insurance co. to administer its Superannuation & Gratuity Fund.
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  Defined benefit plans: Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

  • service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and 
settlements)

  • net interest expense or income and

  • measurement

  The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits 
expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

  Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the 
return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized 
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive 
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized 
in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. 

  Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or 
asset. 

  For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit 
method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. 

  The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s 
defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits 
available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

  Liability for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of the 
termination benefit and when the Company recognizes any related restructuring costs.

  Short-term and other long-term employee benefits: A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect 
of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount 
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service. These benefits include bonus/incentives and compensated 
absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the 
related service.

  Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits 
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

  Liabilities recognized in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated 
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting 
date.

  Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit. 
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of 
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date

  The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and their present value are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial 
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the 
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the 
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All 
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

  The most sensitive is discount rate. The management has considers the interest rates of government bonds. Future salary 
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

 2.11 Tax Expenses

  Income Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. Provision for current tax is made with 
reference to taxable income computed for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared by applying 
the tax rates as applicable.
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  Current Tax: Current Income tax relating to items recognized outside the profit and loss is recognized outside the profit and 
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity)

  Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purpose at reporting date. 
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary 
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. 
A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. 

  The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed as at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will not be available against which deferred tax asset to be utilized. 
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become 
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

  Deferred tax assets are recognized for the unused tax credit to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be 
available against which the losses will be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount 
of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits.

 2.12 Leases

  Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

  A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease. When acquired, such assets 
are capitalized at fair value of the leased property or present value of minimum lease payments, at the inception of lease, 
whichever is lower. 

  Other leases are Operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and 
loss on a straight line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease 
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and amortized over the lease term on the straight line basis.

  As a Lessor

  Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified 
as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in PPE. Rental income from operating lease is recognized 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line 
with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are 
recognized in the year in which such benefits accrue.

  As a lessee

  Leases in which significant portions of risks and reward of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are 
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss account on 
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general 
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are recognized in the year in 
which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in 
which they are incurred. 

  Leases where the lessor effectively transfers substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as 
finance leases and are capitalized at the inception of the lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and 
present value of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of 
the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are 
recognized as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct 
costs of lease are capitalized.
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 2.13 Fair Value Measurement

  The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. 

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

  i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

  ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

  The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

  The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

  A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset 
in its highest and best use.

  The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available 
to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.All 
assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole:

  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

  Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly 
or indirectly observable

  Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable.

  For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

  For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets & liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and the risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

 2.14 Financial Instrument

  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity.                 

  Financial asset is any assets that is

   Cash;

   an equity instrument of another entity;

   a contractual right:

   (i)   to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or   

   (ii)  to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially 
favorable to the entity; or

   a contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is:
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   (i) a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a variable number of the entity’s own equity 
instruments; or

   (ii) a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial 
asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments. 

  Financial assets includes non-current investments, loan to employees, security deposits, trade receivables and other eligible 
current and non-current assets 

  Financial Liability is any liabilities that is

   a contractual obligation :

   (i)   to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or  

   (ii)  to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially 
unfavorable to the entity; or   

   a contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is:

   (i)  a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of the entity’s own equity 
instruments; or

   (ii)  a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial 
asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments. For this purpose, rights, options or warrants 
to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount of any currency are equity 
instruments if the entity offers the rights, options or warrants pro rata to all of its existing owners of the same 
class of its own non-derivative equity instruments. 

   Financial liabilities includes Loans, trade payable and eligible current and non-current liabilities

  i) Classification:

   The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

   • the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and 

   • the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

   A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met, the financial asset is held 
within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and 

   • the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

   A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are 
met: 

   • the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 
cash flows and selling financial assets and 

   • the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

   A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value 
through other comprehensive income.

   All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method or fair value 
through profit or loss.
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  ii) Initial recognition and measurement

   The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value at initial recognition, plus or minus, 
any transaction cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities 
that are not at fair value through profit or loss.

  iii) Financial assets subsequent measurement

   Financial assets as subsequent measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 
or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) as the case may be.

   Financial liabilities as subsequent measured at amortized cost or fair value through profit or loss

  iv) Effective interest method

   The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and allocating 
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form integral part of the effective interest rate, 
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where 
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

   Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial a classified as at 
FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.

  v) Trade Receivables

   Trade receivables are the contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets and recognized initially at fair 
value. Subsequently measured at amortized cost (Initial fair value less expected credit loss). Expected credit loss is 
the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company and all that the Company expects to 
receive (i.e. all cash shortfall), discounted at the effective interest rate.

  vi) Equity investments

   All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value other than investment in subsidiary, Associates 
and Joint venture. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other 
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument 
by- instrument basis

  vii) Cash and cash Equivalents

   Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an 
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

  viii) Impairment of Financial Assets

   The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are 
not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is 
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an 
amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition 
in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required 
to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an 
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

  ix) Financial liabilities

   Financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. These are 
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method or fair value through profit or loss. For 
trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate 
fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments 
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  x) Trade payables

   Trade payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year 
and which are unpaid. Trade payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months 
after the reporting period or not paid/payable within operating cycle. They are recognized initially at their fair value 
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

  xi) Borrowings

   Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption 
amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid 
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan.

   Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a 
long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes 
payable on demand on the reporting date, the Company does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, 
after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a 
consequence of the breach.

  xii) Equity Instruments

   An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of Company after deducting all of 
its liabilities. Equity instruments are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

  xiii)  De-recognition of financial instrument

   The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109. A financial 
liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company’s balance sheet when the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

  xiv) Offsetting of financial instruments

   Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to 
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

  xv)  Derivative Financial Instruments

   Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered and are subsequently 
re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or 
loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing 
of the recognition in profit or loss.

 2.15 Provision and  Contingent Liability

  i. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a 
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but 
discloses its existence in the financial statements.

  ii. Contingent liabilities, if material, are disclosed by way of notes unless the possibility of an outflow of resources 
embodying the economic benefit is remote and contingent assets, if any, is disclosed in the notes to financial 
statements. 
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  iii. A provision is recognized, when Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in 
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made for the amount of obligation. The expense relating to the provision 
is presented in the profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 

 2.16 Earnings Per Share 

  Basic Earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating Diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted 
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

 2.17 Revenue

  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue 
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is 
reduced for trade discounts, rebates and other similar allowances. Revenue includes excise duty however excludes GST, 
sales tax, value added tax, works contract and any other indirect taxes or amounts collected on behalf of the Government.

  Revenue is recognized only when the significant risk and reward of the ownership is transferred to the buyer usually on 
delivery of the goods. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the 
Company, revenue can be reliably measured and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be 
measured reliably.

  Further, sales include revision in prices received from customers with retrospective effect. Similarly, price revision for material 
purchased has also been included in purchases. Further adjustments, if any, are made in the year of final settlement.

  Interest Income is recognized using the effective interest rate method 

  Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive payment is established. 

  Export sales are accounted on the basis of date of bill of lading.

  Payments made in respect of goods cleared as also provision made for goods lying in bonded warehouse.

 2.18 Segment Reporting

  i. Business Segment

   As per Ind AS 108, the Company has reportable segments viz.  Consumer Durable Business till 8th May 2017, OEM & 
packaged Air-conditioning and Heat Exchanger & Components Products during the year under review. Accordingly the 
reporting is done segment wise.

  ii.  Geographical Segment

   The analysis of geographical segment is based on the geographical location of the customers. The Company    operates 
primarily in India and has presence in international markets as well. Its business is accordingly aligned geographically, 
catering to two markets. The Company has considered domestic and exports markets as geographical segments 
and accordingly disclosed these as separate segments. The geographical segments considered for disclosure are as 
follows;

   -  Sales within India represent sales made to customers located within India.

   -  Sales outside India represent sales made to customers located outside India.

 2.19 Grants

  Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions 
attaching to them and such grants can reasonably have a value placed upon them.

  Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises 
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
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  Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving 
immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in 
which they become receivable.

 2.20 Research and development

  Expenditure on research is recognized as an expenses when it is incurred. Expenditure on development with does not meet 
the criteria for recognition as an intangible assets recognized as an expenses when it is incurred

 2.23 Event after reporting date

  Where events occurring after balance sheet date provide evidence of condition that existed at the end of the reporting 
period, the impact of such event is adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the balance sheet date 
of material size or nature are only disclosed.

 2.24  Investment In subsidiary and associate companies

  The Company has elected to recognise its investments in subsidiary and associate companies at cost in accordance with the 
option available in Ind AS 27, “Separate financial statement”. 

 2.25  Recent accounting pronouncements

  Standards issued but not yet effective 

  In March 2018, the ministry of corporate affairs (MCA) issued the companies (Indian accounting standards) Amendments 
rules 2018, notifying Ind AS 115, “Revenue from contract with customers”, Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency 
transaction and advance consideration made by international accounting standards board (IASB). These amendments are 
applicable to the Company from 1st April 2018. The Company will be adopting the amendments from their effective date.

  a)  Ind AS 115, Revenue from contract with customers. 

   Ind AS 115 Supersedes Ind AS 11, Construction contract and Ind AS 18, Revenue. Ind AS 115 require an entity to report 
information regarding nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with 
customer. The principal of Ind As 115 is that an entity recognise revenue that demonstrate the transfer of promised 
goods and services to customer at an amount that reflect the consideration to which the entity expect to be entitled 
in exchange for those goods and services. The standards can be applied either retrospectively to each prior reporting 
period presented or can be applied retrospectively with recognition of cumulative effect of contracts that are not 
completed contacts at the date of initial application of standards.

   Based on preliminary assessment performed by the Company, the impact of application of the standards is not 
expected to be material.

  b) Appendix B to Ind AS 21, foreign currency transaction and advance consideration.

   The appendix clarifies that the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on 
initial recognition of the assets, expenses or income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity initially recognises the 
non-monetary assets or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipts in advance, then an entity must 
determine transaction date for each payment or receipts of advance in consideration. The impact of the appendix on 
the financial statements, as assessed by the Company, is expected to be not material. 

 2.26 Exceptional items

  Exceptional items are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately disclosed to enable a full understanding 
of the Company’s financial performance. Items which may be considered exceptional are significant restructuring charges, 
gains or losses on disposal of investments of subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures and impairment losses/write down 
in the value of investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and significant disposal of fixed assets.
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NOTE 3:  PROPERTY, PLANT & EqUIPMENT
The Changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31 March 2018 were as follows: 

(` In Crores)

Particulars Leasehold 
Land

Temporary 
Constructions

 Buildings Plant & 
Machinery

Office 
Equipment

Vehicles Furniture 
& Fixtures

Total

Gross Carrying Value as at 1st April 2017  1.44  0.12  63.43  471.56  7.48  7.22  3.97 555.22 

Additions  -    -    12.29  26.86  1.01  0.13  0.58  40.87 

Deletions  -    -    -    0.71  3.73  0.36  2.37  7.17 

Gross Carrying Value as at 31st March 2018  1.44  0.12  75.72  497.71  4.76  6.99  2.18 588.92 

Accumulated Depreciation as at 1st April 
2017

 -    0.11  13.16  213.26  5.22  4.36  1.40 237.51 

Depreciation for the year  -    -    2.03  29.86  0.53  0.45  0.33  33.20 

Adjustment  -    -    -    0.20  1.04  0.06  0.64  1.94 

Accumulated Depreciation as at 31st March 
2018

 -    0.11  15.19  242.92  4.71  4.75  1.09 268.77 

Net Carrying Value as at 31st March 2018  1.44  0.01  60.53  254.79  0.05  2.24  1.09 320.15 

Net Carrying Value as at 31st March 2017  1.44  0.01  50.27  258.30  2.26  2.86  2.57 317.71 

Borrowing cost capitalised during the period amount Rs. 27,188,736 (Previous year Rs NIL) Refer Note No. 32

The Changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31 March 2017 were as follows:
(` In Crores)

Particulars Leasehold 
Land

Temporary 
Constructions

 Buildings Plant & 
Machinery

Office 
Equipment

Vehicles Furniture 
& Fixtures

Total

Gross Carrying Value as on 1st April 2016  1.44  0.12  62.85  442.49  6.50  7.32  3.07 523.79 

Additions  -    -    0.58  29.09  0.98  0.12  0.90  31.67 

Deletions  -    -    -    0.02  -    0.22  -    0.24 

Gross Carrying Value as on 31st March 2017  1.44  0.12  63.43  471.56  7.48  7.22  3.97 555.22 

Accumulated Depreciation as of 1st April 
2016

 -    0.11  11.17  182.97  4.25  3.94  1.08 203.52 

Depreciation for the year  -    -    1.99  30.29  0.97  0.64  0.32  34.21 

Adjustment  -    -    -    -    -    (0.22)  -    (0.22)

Accumulated Depreciation as of 31st March 
2017

 -    0.11  13.16  213.26  5.22  4.36  1.40 237.51 

Net Carrying Value as on 31st March 2017  1.44  0.01  50.27  258.30  2.26  2.86  2.57 317.71 

Net Carrying Value as on 31st March 2016  1.44  0.01  51.68  259.52  2.25  3.38  1.99 320.27 

NOTE 4: CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS (` In Crores)

Particulars As at 31 March 
2017

Additions Assets  capitalised 
during the year

As at 31 March 
2018

Capital work in progress  10.13  313.23  10.13  313.23 

Total  10.13  313.23  10.13  313.23 
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NOTE 5: OTHER INTANGIbLE ASSETS
The Changes in the carrying value of Intangible Assets for the year ended 31 March 2018 were as follows:

(` In Crores)
Particulars Logo of Brand 

"LLOYD"
Intangible generated 
Internally - Product 

Development Expenses

Total

Gross Carrying Value as at 1st April 2017  13.87  0.74  14.61 

Additions  -    2.85  2.85 

Deletions  13.87  -    13.87 

Gross Carrying Value as at 31st March 2018  -    3.59  3.59 

Accumulated Depreciation as at 1st April 2017  13.18  0.15  13.32 

Depreciation for the year  -    0.15  0.15 

Adjustment  13.18  -    13.18 

Accumulated Depreciation as at 31st March 2018  -    0.30  0.30 

Net Carrying Value as at 31st March 2018 -  3.29  3.29 

Net Carrying Value as at 31st March 2017  0.70  0.59  1.29 

The Changes in the carrying value of Intangible Assets for the year ended 31 March 2017 were as follows:
(` In Crores)

Particulars Logo of Brand 
"LLOYD"

Intangible generated 
Internally - Product 

Development Expenses

Total

Gross Carrying Value as on 1st April 2016  13.87  0.74  14.61 
Additions  -    -    -   
Deletions  -    -    -   
Gross Carrying Value as on 31st March 2017  13.87  0.74  14.61 

Accumulated Depreciation as of 1st April 2016  11.56  -    11.56 
Depreciation for the year  1.61  0.15  1.76 
Adjustment  -    -    -   
Accumulated Depreciation as of 31st March 2017  13.17  0.15  13.32 
Net Carrying Value as on 31st March 2017  0.70  0.59  1.29 
Net Carrying Value as on 31st March 2016  2.31  0.74  3.05 

NOTES-6 INVESTMENTS (` In Crores)
Particulars Currency No of 

Shares
Face Value As at 

 31 March 
2018 

No of Shares  As at
 31 March 

2017 
Investment measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income
Non-trade, quoted, fully paid
Investments in equity instruments 
     Blue Star Ltd  INR  392  2  0.03  392  0.03 
     Castrol (India) Ltd. INR  40  5  0.00  20  -   
     Chambal Fertilizers & Chemicals Ltd. INR  1,000  10  0.02  1,000  0.01 
     DB International Stock Brokers Ltd INR  13,000  2  0.01  13,000  0.01 
     Dot Com. Global Ltd INR  24,200  10  0.00  24,200  -   
     Shardul Securities Ltd. INR  25,600  10  0.11  25,600  0.11 
     ACE Edutrend Ltd INR  16,900  10  0.00  16,900  -   
     Dion Global Solutions Limited INR  160  10  0.00  160  -   
     Healthfore Technologies Ltd  INR  80  10  0.00  80  -   

Contd...
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     Glaxosmithkline Pharmaceuticals Ltd  INR  125  10  0.03  125  0.03 
     HDFC Bank Ltd. INR  125  2  0.02  125  0.02 
     Hindustan Unilever Ltd. INR  1,350  1  0.18  1,350  0.12 
     JSW Steel Limited INR  11,240  1  0.32  11,240  0.21 
     Lumax Industries Limited INR  4,600  10  1.01  4,600  0.64 
     Panasonic Energy India Co.Ltd INR  500  10  0.02  500  0.01 
     Pan India Corporation Ltd INR  200  10  0.00  200  -   
     Sterlite Technologies Ltd INR  525  2  0.02  525  0.01 
     Sterlite Power Transmission Ltd INR  105  2  0.00  105  -   
     Subros Limited INR  150  2  0.00  150  -   
     Tata Chemicals Limited INR  50  10  0.00  50  -   
     Tata Consultancy Services Limited INR  832  10  0.24  832  0.20 
     Visesh Infotecnics Limited  INR  1,100  1  0.00  1,100  -   
     Voltas Limited INR  500  1  0.03  500  0.02 
     GHCL Ltd. INR  15,000  10  0.39  15,000  0.41 
     Archies Ltd. INR  50,000  2  0.16  50,000  0.12 

 2.59  1.95 
Non Trade, Unquoted, fully paid
     Investment in equity instruments
     Fedders Credits Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd  
     Credits Ltd.), Related party

INR  300,000  10  0.30  300,000  0.30 

     Fedders Aircool Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd  
     Aircon Pvt. Ltd.), Related party

INR  350  10  0.00  350  -   

     Carrier Airconditioning & Refrigeration Ltd. INR  400  10  0.00  400  -   
 0.30  0.30 

Non Trade, Unquoted, fully paid
Investment in Mutual Funds
     SBI Mutual Fund INR  100,000  10  0.13  100,000  0.13 

Trade, Unquoted, fully paid
Investment in equity instruments
In Wholly owned subsidairies*
     LEEL Coils Europe s.r.o (Formerly Lloyd Coils  
     Europe s.r.o)

CZK * *  45.01 *  45.01 

     Janka Engineering s.r.o CZK * *  38.66 *  38.66 
     Noske-Kaeser Rail & Vehicle Germany GmbH EURO * *  3.75 *  3.75 
          Less: Impairment in value of investments  (3.75)  -   
     Noske-Kaeser Rail & Vehicles New Zealand Ltd. NZD$ * *  19.61 *  18.65 
     Leel Services s.r.o. CZK * *  0.00 *  -   

 103.28  106.07 
Total  106.30  108.45 
 
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market 
value thereof

 2.59  1.95 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  107.46  106.50 
Aggregate amount of impairment in vlaue of investments  3.75  -   

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
*Name of Subsidiary Currency Registered 

Capital
Capital  

Contribution
Registered 

Capital
Capital  

Contribution
Percentage of 

holding
LEEL Coils Europe s.r.o (Formerly Lloyd Coils Europe s.r.o) CZK  7.00  5.75  7.00  10.98 100%
Janka Engineering s.r.o CZK  6.49  20.37  6.49  8.53 100%
Noske-Kaeser Rail & Vehicle Germany GmbH EURO 0.00  0.03  0.00    0.03 100%
Noske-Kaeser Rail & Vehicles New Zealand Ltd. NZD$  0.67  -    0.67  -   100%
Leel Services s.r.o. CZK 0.00  3.93  -    -   100%
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NOTE 7: LOANS (AT AMORTISED COST) (` In Crores)

Particulars As at  
31 March 2018

As at  
31 March 2017

Unsecured, considered good

Security Deposits  1.78  2.80 

Unsecured, Doubtful

Loans to Subsidiary Company - Noske-Kaeser Rail and Vehicle Germany GmbH (Refer note 
no 39)

 12.54  4.10 

Less : Allowance for doubtful loans to Subsidiary Company  (12.54)  -   
Total  1.78  6.90 

NOTE 8: OThER FINANCIAL ASSETS (` In Crores)

Other Bank Balance  0.33  0.20 
Total  0.33  0.20 

NOTE 9: INVENTORIES (AT LOWER OF COST AND NET RELISABLE VALUE) (` In Crores)

Raw materials  713.53  455.06 

Work in Progress  10.95  22.38 

Finished Goods  17.42  514.57 
Total  741.90  992.01 

Inventories include Goods in transit:

Raw materials  110.30  94.07 

NOTE 10: TRADE RECEIVABLES , UNSECURED (` In Crores)

Trade Receivables -Considered Good *  662.10  695.31 

Less : Allowance for Expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivable **  3.31  1.71 

Total  658.79  693.60 

*Trade receivable are non interest bearing and generally on terms of 30 to 90 days

      Trade receivable includes balances with related parties as follows:

LEEL Coils Europe s.r.o. (Formerly Lloyd Coils Europe s.r.o.) - Subsidiary  0.48  0.48 

Janka Engineering s.r.o.- Subsidiary  0.05  0.05 
Total  0.53  0.53 

**  Refer note no 47(b)

NOTE 11: CASH AND CASH EqUIVALENTS (` In Crores)
         Balance with Banks-Current accounts  19.01  89.41 
         Cash on hand  0.14  0.24 
Total  19.15  89.65 

NOTE 12: OThERS bANk bALANCES (` In Crores)
Unclaimed dividend accounts  0.85  0.22 
Fixed Deposits with maturity more than three months  0.12  0.12 
Receipt pledged with Bank for margin money (Including Interest)  0.03  0.58 
Total  1.00  0.92 
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NOTE 13: LOANS (` In Crores)

Particulars As at  
31 March 2018

As at  
31 March 2017

Unsecured, considered good

Security Deposits  2.12  2.11 
Loans to related party - Subsidiary Company (refer note no 39)
LEEL Coils Europe s.r.o (Formerly Lloyd Coils Europe s.r.o)  7.47  6.02 
Total  9.59  8.13 

NOTE 14: OThER FINANCIAL ASSETS (` In Crores)
Security Deposit to Related party (refer note 40c)  87.54  46.88 

Interest accrued on Fixed Deposit with Banks  0.01  0.03 
Derivative Assets  0.35  -   
Total  87.90  46.91 

NOTE 15: OThER CURRENT ASSETS  (` In Crores)
Prepaid expenses  0.51  24.29 

Advances for capital goods  9.16  5.89 
Balance with Statutory/ Govt. Authorities  21.39  24.02 
Advance recoverable in cash and kind or for value to be recovered  -    10.17 
Other advances to:(refer note 40c)
Related party - Fedders Electric & Engineering Limited  12.73  -   
Subsidiary Company - Noske-Kaeser Rail and Vehicle Germany GmbH  1.29  -   
Less:- Allowance for doubtful advance - Noske-Kaeser Rail & Vehicle Germany GmbH  (1.29)  -   
Advances to employees  0.21  0.04 
Total  44.00  64.41 

NOTE 16: EqUITY SHARE CAPITAL (` In Crores)
1.  Authorized Capital

     7,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each  70.00  70.00 
     (Previous year 7,00,00,000 Equity Shares of  Rs. 10/- each)
     Total Authorized Share Capital  70.00  70.00 

2.  Issued & Subscribed Capital
      4,03,45,160 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each  40.35  40.35 
     (Previous Year 4,03,45,160 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each)

3.  Paid up Capital
      4,03,32,260 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up  40.33  40.33 
     (Previous Year 4,03,32,260 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each)

Add:- Equity Shares forfeited  0.01  0.01 
(amount originally paid up)
Total  40.34  40.34 

NOTES:-       
1.  Out of the above Equity Shares       
 a)  Includes 92,00,000 underlying Equity Shares representing 46,00,000 Global Depository Receipts(‘GDRs’) issued during the year 2005-06. As at 

March 31, 2018, no GDR is pending for conversion.
 b)   In the Financial Year 2006-07, the Company had forfeited 13,300 equity shares due to the non-payment of allotment money. The Board of Directors 

had annulled the forfeiture of 400 equity shares on receipt of payment advice by the shareholders and accordingly 400 Equity Shares had been 
restored back.        

 c)  During the Financial Year 2013-14, 43,20,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each were alloted to the shareholders of Perfect Radiators & Oil Coolers Pvt. 
Ltd. (PROC) pursuant to the scheme of arrangement involving demerger and vesting of heat exchanger business of PROC into the Company. 

      



 Financial Statements >> Standalone Financials

95

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period  

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
No. of Shares  (` in crores) No. of Shares  (` in crores) 

Equity Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  40,332,260  40.33  36,205,260  36.21 
Shares Issued during the year*  -    -    4,127,000  4.13 
Shares outstanding at the End of the year  40,332,260  40.33  40,332,260  40.33 
*includes allotment of 17,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 142 each and 24,27,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium 
of Rs. 142 each alloted to Promoter Group Entities on September 03, 2016 and on September 08, 2016 respectively, upon conversion of equivalent 
number of warrants issued on preferential basis.       

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote 
per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend if proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to 
the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
No. of Shares  (` in crores) No. of Shares  (` in crores) 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
PSL Engineering Pvt. Ltd. 3,713,520 9.21 3,713,520 9.21
Fedders Sales Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd Sales Pvt. Ltd.) 3,315,005 8.22 3,315,005 8.22
Airserco Pvt. Ltd. 3,304,133 8.20 3,304,133 8.20
Fedders Manufacturing Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd 
Manufacturing Pvt. Ltd.)

2,253,416 5.59 2,253,416 5.59

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declaration received from the shareholders regarding 
beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.      
 
NOTE 17: OThER EQUITY (` In Crores)
Particulars As at  

31 March 2018
As at  

31 March 2017
Capital Reserve  15.00  11.25 
     Add: Share warrant forfeited  -    3.75 

 15.00  15.00 
Securities Premium Account  270.24  211.64 
    Add: Premium Amount from conversion of Warrants  -    58.60 

 270.24  270.24 
General Reserve
    Opening Balance  247.72  217.72 
    Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account  -    30.00 

 247.72  247.72 
Retained Earnings
    Opening Balance  346.87  297.39 
    Profit for the year  522.23  85.14 
    Special Dividend (including Dividend Tax)  (97.09)  -   
    Deferred tax (earlier year)  (34.49)  -   
    Dividend Paid (including tax on dividend)  (7.28)  (5.66)
    Transfer to General Reserve  -    (30.00)

 730.24  346.87 

Contd...
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Other Comprehensive Income:
     Remeasurement of Retirement Benefit 
     Opening Balance  (0.44)  -   
          Addition During the Year  0.26  (0.44)

 (0.18)  (0.44)
     Revaluation Reserve net of tax  0.23  0.23 
          (Land Revalued as on 31st March 1993)
     Fair Value of Investment
          Opening Balance  1.39  0.60 
          Addition during the year  0.63  0.79 

 2.02  1.39 
Total  1,265.27  881.01 

NOTE 18: bORROWINGS (` In Crores)
(Refer note no 35a)
Secured
Term Loans(Indian Currency)
     From banks  -    50.95 
Total  -    50.95 

NOTE 19: LONG TERM PROVISIONS (` In Crores)
Provision for Employee Benefit
     Gratuity (Refer note no 44)  4.14  6.82 
     Leave Encashment  1.13  -   
Provision for e waste*  73.02  -   
Total  78.29  6.82 
* A provision is recognised for probable e-waste liability based on “Extended Producer Responsibility” as furnished by the Company to Central 
Pollution Control Board in accordance with E-Waste Management Rules, 2016 notified by Government of India during the year. A provision for the 
expected costs of management of historical waste is recognised when the costs can be reliably measured. These costs are recognised as ‘Exception 
item” in the statement of profit and loss.

NOTE 20: DEFERRED TAx LIABILITIES (NET) (` In Crores)
(Refer Note No 50 ( b ))
      Deferred tax liabilities  56.43  2.47 
      Deferred tax assets  (1.71)  (1.82)
Total  54.72  0.65 

NOTE 21: BORROWINGS (` In Crores)
(Refer note no  35b)
Secured
Working Capital from Banks  473.73  1,025.08 
Total  473.73  1,025.08 

NOTE 22: TRADE PAYABLES (` In Crores)
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises (Refer note no 38)  4.81  2.76 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises*  347.39  130.26 

 352.20  133.02 
*Trade payable includes balances with related parties as follows:
LEEL Coils Europe s.r.o. (Formerly Lloyd Coils Europe s.r.o.) - Subsidiary  3.89  2.55 
Janka Engineering s.r.o.- Subsidiary  0.24  0.24 
Noske Kaeser Rail & Vehicles New Zealand Limited (“NK NZ”) Subsidiary  0.27  0.84 
Total  4.40  3.63 
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NOTE 23: OThER FINANCIAL LIAbILITIES (` In Crores)
Particulars As at  

31 March 2018
As at  

31 March 2017
Current maturities of long-term debt
     Term Loans (Refer note no 35a)  -    28.28 
     Loan Against Vehicles (Refer note no 35c)  0.75  1.15 
Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings  1.25  0.45 
Unclaimed Dividend  0.85  0.31 
Expenses Payable*  6.49  27.25 
Other Liabilities  -    66.68 
Derivative Liabilities  -    1.55 

 9.34  125.67 
*Expenses payable includes balances with related parties as follows:
Remunereation payable to KMP  0.41  0.38 

NOTE 24: OThER CURRENT LIAbILITIES (` In Crores)
Due to Statutory Bodies  9.31  50.26 
Advance from customer  8.43  -   
Total  17.74  50.26 

NOTE 25: SHORT TERM PROVISIONS (` In Crores)
Provision for Employee Benefit
     Gratuity (Refer note no 44)  0.31  0.26 
     Leave Encashment  0.07  1.18 
Provision for warranty*  0.20  5.18 
Total  0.58  6.62 
*A provision is recognised for expected warranty claims and after sales services on products sold during the last one to five years, based on past experience of 
the level of repairs and returns. It is expected that significant portion of these costs will be incurred in the next financial year and all will have been incurred 
within one years after the reporting date. Assumptions used to calculate the provisions for warranties were based on current sales levels and current information 
available about returns based on one year warranty period for all products sold.

NOTE 26: REVENUE FROM OPERATION (` In Crores)
Particulars  For the Year 

Ended  
31 March 2018 

 For the Year 
Ended  

31 March 2018 
Sale of Products*  1,953.67  3,013.82 
Other Operating Revenues  8.90  8.61 
Total  1,962.57  3,022.43 
**Sales for the period 01st July 2017 to 31st March 2018 is net of Goods and Service Tax (GST). However, sales for the previous year and for the period 01st April 
2017 to 30th June 2018 is gross of excise duty.

NOTE 27: OThER INCOME (` In Crores)
Interest Income
- from Subsidiary  0.52  0.81 
- from fixed deposits  9.42  0.01 
- from others  0.27  0.50 
- from financial Assets at amortisation cost  0.15  0.15 
Dividend Income from equity instrument measured at FVTOCI  0.02  0.02 
Gain on Sale on Fixed Assets  -    0.07 
Foreign Exchange Fluctuations (net)  30.00  -   
Other non operatiing income (net of expenses)  0.36  0.42 
Total  40.74  1.98 
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NOTE 28: COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED (` In Crores)
Particulars  For the Year 

Ended  
31 March 2018 

 For the Year 
Ended  

31 March 2018 
Raw Material
Opening stock  360.99  344.95 
Purchases  during the year  1,337.00  2,174.28 
Carriage Inwards  29.34  40.53 

 1,727.33  2,559.76 
Less: Closing stock  603.23  360.99 
Total  1,124.10  2,198.77 

NOTE 29: PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE (` In Crores)
Other consumer goods  47.76  270.13 
Total  47.76  270.13 

NOTE 30: CHANGE IN INVENTORY (` In Crores)
Opening stock
       Work-in-progress  22.38  20.97 
       Finished goods  514.57  453.84 

 536.95  474.81 
Closing stock
       Work-in-progress  10.95  22.38 
       Finished goods  17.42  514.57 

 28.37  536.95 
Total  508.58  (62.14)

NOTE 31: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT ExPENSE (` In Crores)
Salaries and wages including bonus  55.36  89.47 
Contribution to Provident and other funds  2.18  4.00 
Staff Welfare expenses  5.38  3.22 
Total  62.92  96.69 

NOTE 32: FINANCE COST (` In Crores)
Interest on:  
Bank Loan  54.92  98.99 
Subsidiary Company loan  -    0.17 
Other borrowing cost - Bank Charges  14.35  19.73 

 69.27  118.89 
Less: Borrowing cost capitalised during the year  (2.72)  -   
Total  66.55  118.89 

NOTE 33: DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIzATION ExPENSE (` In Crores)
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment  33.20  34.21 
Amortization of Intangible Assets  0.15  1.76 
Total  33.35  35.97 
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NOTE 34: OTHER ExPENSES (` In Crores)
Particulars  For the Year 

Ended  
31 March 2018 

 For the Year 
Ended  

31 March 2018 
Advertising expenses  24.06  86.10 
Auditor's remuneration (Refer Note No 42)  0.47  0.23 
Bad debts  10.22  -   
Business promotion  7.56  11.71 
Contribution towards corporate social responsibility (CSR) (Refer Note No 51)  3.13  1.36 
Factory overheads  5.94  8.01 
Fair value loss on financial assets  -    0.04 
Foreign exchange fluctuations (net)  -    4.32 
Insurance  1.28  2.08 
Legal and professional  6.47  8.00 
Life time credit risk on trade receivables  1.60  0.27 
Loss on sale of fixed assets  0.19  -   
Miscellaneous expenses  3.30  2.33 
Motor car expenses  0.62  0.40 
Octroi and carriage outwards  11.30  21.38 
Postage and telephone expenses  1.42  4.89 
Power  and fuel  6.96  7.07 
Printing and stationery  0.34  0.71 
Rents, rates and taxes (Refer Note No 53)  3.14  11.32 
Repairs and maintenance
Machinery  3.85  4.09 
Building and office  0.36  0.29 
Service contract charges/ installations/ warranty  5.56  17.87 
Travelling and conveyance  4.44  9.54 
Total  102.21  202.01 
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Notes to Accounts 
35)  Borrowings

 a) Term Loan

  1.  Indian rupee loan of ̀  35.00 Crores from IDBI Bank Ltd. carries interest @ 12.25% p.a. on ̀  17.50 Crores and @ 11.50% 
p.a. on ` 17.50 Crores. The Loan is repayable in 16 quarterly installment of ` 2.19 crores each after monotorium of  
12 Months from the date of loan i.e. 31st March, 2013. The Company has taken disbursement of ` 31.50 Crores.

  2.  Indian rupee loan for ` 120.00 Crores from State Bank of India carries interest @ 11.00% p.a. The Loan is repayable in 
24 quarterly installment of ` 5.00 crores each after monotorium of 12 Months from the date of loan i.e. 30.06.2013.

  3.  Indian rupees loan for ` 20.00 Crores from State Bank of India (Formerly State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur) carries 
interest @ 12% p.a. The Loan is repayable in 16 Quarterly installment of ` 1.25 Crores each after monotorium of  
9 Months from the date of Loan i.e. 01.09.2015.

  4.  The above loans were secured by way of first charge on Pari-Passu basis on the Property, Plant and Equipments of the 
Company and second hypothecation charge on the Stock/Book Debts.

  5.  The loan has been fully repaid during the current period.

 b)  Working Capital Loan from Banks

  Working capital loans from banks carry an average interest rate of 10.50% to 11.50% (31st March, 2017 : 10.50% to 11.50%).

  The working capital loans, fund based as well as non-fund based are secured by way of first hypothecation charge on the 
stocks/ book debts, both present and future and second charge on pari-passu basis on the Property, Plant and Equipments 
of the Company. This includes working capital loan in the form of Cash Credit Limit, Working Capital Demand Loan, Bill 
Discounted and Buyer’s Credit etc.

 c)  Loan against Vehicle

  1.  Indian rupee loan for ̀  4.4 Lacs from HDFC Bank Ltd. carries interest @ 9.78% p.a. The Loan is repayable in 36 equated 
monthly installments of ` 14,125 starting from 05.09.2016. 

  2.  Indian rupee loan for ` 6.44 Lacs from HDFC Bank Ltd. carries interest @ 8.62% p.a. The Loan is repayable in 36 
monthly installment of ` 20,329 starting from 07.08.2017.

  3.   Indian rupee loan for ` 7.15 Lacs from HDFC Bank Ltd. carries interest @ 9.53% p.a. The Loan is repayable in  
48 monthly installment of ` 17,930 starting from 15.07.2016.

  4.   Indian rupee loan for ` 1.125 Crores from HDFC Bank Ltd. carries interest @ 9.48% p.a. The Loan is repayable in  
60 monthly installment of ` 234,925 starting from 07.10.2015.

  5.  The above loans are secured by way of hypothecation of Company’s Vehicle.
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36) Contingent Liabilities not provided for
 (` In Crores)

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2018 

 As at 
31 March 2017

A.   Claims against the company / disputed liabilities not acknowledged as debts
       a.   HP State Electricity Board
       b.  Central Excise & Customs Matters*
       c.  Income Tax Matters (Pending Rectifications)
       d.  With a Vendor

0.11
49.13

1.25
0.79

0.11
3.31
2.95
0.79

B.   Guarantees
i) Bank Guarantees
ii) Unconditional and irrevocable Corporate Guarantee of AUD 6 Million in favour  
M/s Bombardier Transportation (v/Line) Australia Pty Ltd. (“Bombardier”). This 
guarantee is issued as a security for the performance of the agreement executed by 
Noske Kaeser Rail & Vehicles New Zealand Limited (WOS) with the Bombardier for the 
manufacture and supply of equipment’s by the WOS.
iii) Unconditional and irrevocable Performance Guarantee of NZD 3.8 million in favour 
of M/s Downer EDI Rail Pty Limited (“Downer). This guarantee is issued as a security 
for the performance of the agreement executed by Noske Kaeser Rail & Vehicles New 
Zealand Limited (WOS) with the Downer for the supply of air conditioner equipment 
and services by the WOS.
iv) Unconditional and irrevocable Performance Guarantee of AUD 2.9 Million in favour  
of EDI Rail-Bombardier Transportation Maintenance Pty Ltd. (“EDIBT”) for the 
performance of the contract executed by Noske Kaeser Rail & Vehicles New Zealand 
Limited (WOS) with the EDIBT in the ordinary course of business.

11.95
30.02

17.93

14.51

24.56
29.72

17.25

Nil                      

 *During the financial year 2015-16, the Company has received total demand of ̀  46.23 crores under show cause notices from custom department. 
Demand has been confirmed by the Commissioner of Custom, Maharashtra vide order dated 20th April 2017. The Company has filed an appeal 
before CESTAT Mumbai against above said order.

37)  Contracts remaining to be executed                                                                   NIL              NIL
 On capital account and not provided for     

38)  Micro and Small Scale Business Entities 
 This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been 

determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. Accordingly, 
there were no interest due on the principal amount, not there was necessity to pay interest for delayed payment in terms of 
section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED). 

(` In Crores)

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Principal amount unpaid to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006. 4.81 2.76
Interest accrued and due to suppliers under Section 16 of MSMED Act, 2006 on the 
above amount, unpaid

0.08 0.08

Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day during the 
year

- -

Interest paid to suppliers under the MSMED Act - -
Interest due and payable towards suppliers under MSMED Act towards payments 
already made

- -

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year - -
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39) Disclosure as per regulation 34 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
 Loan given to Subsidiary and outstanding                                               (` in crores)

Name of the Company Relationship Amount Out-
standing as on  
31 March 2018 

Amount Out-
standing as on  
31 March 2017

LEEL Coils Europe s.r.o. (Formerly Lloyd Coils Europe s.r.o.) Czech 
Republic

Wholly owned 
subsidiary

7.47 6.02

Noske-Kaeser Rail & Vehicles, Germany GmbH
Less: Allowances for doubtful loan

Wholly owned 
subsidiary

12.54
(12.54)

4.10
-

40) Related Party Disclosures: (in which some Directors are interested)

 The related parties as per the terms of Ind AS-24,”Related Party Disclosures”, (under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(the Act) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and other relevant 
provision of the Act)) are disclosed below:-

 A. Names of related parties and related Party relationships
 i. Wholly Owned Subsidiaries
  a. LEEL Coils Europe s.r.o. (Formerly Lloyd Coils Europe s.r.o.) Czech Republic
  b. Janka Engineering s.r.o. Czech Republic 
  c. LEEL Services s.r.o. Czech Republic
  d. Noske Kaeser Rail & Vehicle Germany GmbH (Under insolvency)
  e. Noske Kaeser US Rail & Vehicle LLC; 
  f. Noske Kaeser Rail & Vehicles New Zealand Limited (“NK NZ”);
  g. Noske-Kaeser Rail & Vehicle Australia Pty Ltd (Indirect Wholly owned subsidiary through NK NZ)
  h. Noske-Kaeser Empreendimentos e Participaçôes do Brasil Ltd. (Indirect Wholly owned subsidiary through NK NZ)

 ii. List of Key management personnel as defined under Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, ‘Related party disclosures’ :
  a. Late Mr. Brij Raj Punj  Chairman & Managing Director (till 5th Dec 2017)
  b. Mr. Bharat Raj Punj Managing Director w.e.f 30th May 2018 (Deputy Managing Director till 29th May 2018) 
  c. Mr. Achin Kumar Roy Whole Time Director
  d. Mr. Mukat B. Sharma Whole Time Director & Chief Financial Officer 
  e. Mr. Nipun Singhal Whole Time Director (Resigned w.e.f. 8th May, 2017)

 iii. Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel or their relatives;
  a. Fedders Electric & Engineering Ltd. (Formerly Fedders Lloyd Corporation Ltd.)
  b. Fedders Lloyd Trading FZE
  c. Airserco Pvt. Ltd.
  d. Perfect Radiators & Oil Coolers Pvt. Ltd.
  e. PSL Engineering Pvt. Ltd.
  f. Regal Information Technology Pvt. Ltd.
  g. Fedders Aircool Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd Aircon Pvt. Ltd.)
  h. Fedders Credits Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd Credits Ltd.)
  i. Fedders IT Technology Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd IT Technology Pvt. Ltd.)
  j. Fedders Sales Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd Sales Pvt. Ltd.)
  k. Fedders Manufacturing Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd Manufacturing Pvt. Ltd.)
  l. Fedders Infotech (India) Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd Infotech (India) Pvt. Ltd.)
  m. Fedders Stock & Investments Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd Stock & Investments Pvt. Ltd.)
  n. Himalayan Mineral Waters Pvt. Ltd.
  o. Punj Engineering Pvt. Ltd.
  p. Punj Services Pvt. Ltd.
  q. Pandit Kanahaya Lal Punj Pvt. Ltd.
  r. PSL Wolfe JV Pvt. Ltd.
  s. Pandit Kanahaya Lal Punj Trust
  t. Brij Raj Punj(HUF)
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 B. Transactions during the period with Related Parties are as under:
(` in Crores)

Name of Related Party 2017-18 2016-17
Amount Amount

Fedders Electric & Engineering Ltd. (Formerly Fedders Lloyd Corporation Ltd.)
Sales of Goods 3.08 11.66
Purchase of Goods 71.65 57.40
Security Deposit 61.12 Nil
Other Advances 12.73 Nil
Capital Work in Progress 8.62 Nil
Fedders Infotech (India) Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd Infotech (India) Pvt. Ltd.)
Services Received 9.38 39.64
Fedders Manufacturing Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd Manufacturing Pvt. Ltd.)
Money received against Share Warrants Nil 6.84
Perfect Radiators and Oil Coolers Pvt. Ltd.
Money received against Share Warrants Nil 4.56
Rent Paid 1.10 1.10 
Security Deposit Nil 8.08
Capital Work in Progress 61.96 Nil
Pandit Kanahaya Lal Punj Pvt. Ltd.
Money received against Share Warrants Nil 10.98
Rent Paid 0.53  0.53
Security Deposit Nil 5.36
Himalayan Mineral Waters Pvt. Ltd.
Money received against Share Warrants Nil 13.26
Security Deposit Nil 3.06
Capital Work in Progress 120.03 Nil
Fedders Stock & Investment Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd Stock & Investment Pvt. Ltd.)
Money received against Share Warrants Nil 6.84
Fedders Credits Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd Credits Ltd.)
Money received against Share Warrants Nil 4.56
Pandit Kanahaya Lal Punj Trust (PKLP Trust)
Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility 3.13 1.36
Fedders IT Technology Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd IT Technology Pvt. Ltd.)
Capital Work in Progress 59.13 Nil
PSL Engineering Pvt. Ltd.
Purchase of Goods 0.44 Nil
Fedders Aircool Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd Aircon Pvt. Ltd)
Security Deposits Nil 3.95
Capital Work in Progress 16.00 Nil
Subsidiary Companies
LEEL Coils Europe s.r.o. (Formerly Lloyd Coils Europe s.r.o.)
Purchase of Goods 1.79 1.15
Interest paid on Loan taken Nil 0.17
Loan Given during the year Nil Nil
Interest Receivables on Loan given 0.51 0.53
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Janka Engineering s.r.o.
Purchase of Goods Nil 0.16
Noske-Kaeser Rail & Vehicle Germany GmbH (under insolvency)
Loan Given 8.44 1.04
Interest Receivables on Loan given Nil 0.28
Other Advances 1.29 Nil
Impairment in the value of investment (3.75) Nil
Allowance for doubtful loans (12.54) Nil
Allowance for advance (1.29) Nil
Noske Kaeser Rail & Vehicles New zealand Limited
Purchase of Goods
Key Management Personnel 0.33 0.92
Managerial Remuneration Paid
- Late Mr. Brij Raj Punj (till 5th Dec 2017) 0.58 0.78
- Mr. Bharat Raj Punj 0.69 0.63
- Mr. Achin Kumar Roy 2.74 1.66
- Mr. Mukat B. Sharma 0.54 0.49
- Mr. Nipun Singhal (resigned w.e.f. 8th May 2017) 0.77 1.05

 C.  Balance as at year end are as under:
(` in Crores)

Name of Related Party 2017-18 2016-17
Amount Amount

Fedders Electric & Engineering Ltd. (Formerly Fedders Lloyd Corporation Ltd.)
Security Deposit 87.54 Dr 26.43 Dr 
Other Advances 12.73 Dr Nil
Perfect Radiators and Oil Coolers Pvt. Ltd.
Security Deposit Nil 8.08 Dr 
Pandit Kanahaya Lal Punj Pvt. Ltd.
Security Deposit Nil 5.36 Dr
Himalayan Mineral Waters Pvt. Ltd.
Security Deposit Nil 3.06 Dr
Fedders Aircool Pvt. Ltd. (Formerly Lloyd Aircon Pvt. Ltd)
Security Deposit Nil 3.95
Remuneration of:
- Late Mr. Brij Raj Punj (till 5th Dec 2017) 0.07 Cr 0.06 Cr
- Mr. Bharat Raj Punj 0.06 Cr 0.05 Cr
- Mr. Achin Kumar Roy 0.23 Cr 0.14 Cr
- Mr. Mukat B. Sharma 0.05 Cr 0.04 Cr
- Mr. Nipun Singhal (till 8th May 2017) Nil 0.09 Cr
Noske-Kaeser Rail & Vehicle Germany GmbH (under insolvency)
Loan 12.54 Dr 4.10 Dr
Other Advances  1.29 Dr Nil
Allowance for doubtful loans  12.54 Cr Nil
Allowance for doubtful advance 1.29 Cr Nil
Noske Kaeser Rail & Vehicles New zealand Limited
Trade Payable 0.27 Cr 0.84 Cr
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LEEL Coils Europe s.r.o. (Formerly Lloyd Coils Europe s.r.o.)
Trade Receivable 0.48 Dr 0.48 Dr
Trade payable 3.89 Cr 2.55 Cr
Loan 7.47 Dr 6.02 Dr
Janka Engineering s.r.o.
Trade Receivable 0.05 Dr  0.05 Dr
Trade Payable 0.24 Cr 0.24 Cr

 a. The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. 
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no 
guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31, 2018, the 
Company has recorded impairment/allowances for doubtful loan and advances of receivables relating to amounts owed by 
related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related 
party and the market in which the related party operates.

 b. Purchase of goods and sale of goods has been reported gross off Value Added tax/Goods and Service Tax

41)   Earnings Per Share

 Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share: Earnings per share have been computed as under:

 a) Earnings per share (for continuing operation including exceptional items)  

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Net Profit after Tax for the year – (` in crores) 515.28 85.48

Basic weighted average number of Equity Shares Outstanding – (Nos.) 40,332,260 38,546,452

Basic Earnings Per Share (`) (Face Value ` 10/-per share)  127.76 22.18

Diluted weighted average number of Equity Shares Outstanding – (Nos.) 40,332,260 40,332,260

Diluted Earnings Per Share (`) (Face Value ` 10/-per share) 127.76 21.20

 b) Earnings per share (for discontinued operation)  

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Net Profit after Tax for the year – (` in crores) 7.84                             -   

Basic weighted average number of Equity Shares Outstanding – (Nos.) 40,332,260 38,546,452

Basic Earnings Per Share (`) (Face Value ` 10/-per share) 1.94 Nil

Diluted weighted average number of Equity Shares Outstanding – (Nos.) 40,332,260 40,332,260

Diluted Earnings Per Share (`) (Face Value ` 10/-per share) 1.94 Nil

 c)  Earnings per share (for discontinued and continuing operation including exceptional items)  

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Net Profit after Tax for the year – (` in crores) 523.12 85.48

Basic weighted average number of Equity Shares Outstanding – (Nos.) 40,332,260 38,546,452

Basic Earnings Per Share (`) (Face Value ` 10/-per share) 129.71 22.18

Diluted weighted average number of Equity Shares Outstanding – (Nos.) 40,332,260 40,332,260

Diluted Earnings Per Share (`) (Face Value ` 10/-per share) 129.71 21.20
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42)  Remuneration to Auditors             (` in Crores)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
a) To Statutory Auditor:
           For financial audit 0.40 0.15
           For limited review              0.04 0.02
           For certification 0.01 0.01
           For Tax Audit - 0.03
b) To Cost Auditor for Cost Audit 0.02 0.02
Total 0.47 0.23

43) Segment Information
 A.  Primary Segment Reporting (Business Segment)
 During the year the Company had following Business segments as its primary reportable segments
 a. Consumer Durables (please refer note 48) (till 8th May 2017)
 b. OEM & Packaged Air-conditioning 
 c. Heat Exchangers & Components
 Segment Revenues, Results and Other Information: (` in Crores)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
I. Segment Revenue

i. Consumer Durables 423.53 1,885.46
ii. OEM & Packaged Air-conditioning 964.18 936.01
iii. Heat Exchangers & Components 639.91 603.93

Sub:- Total (i+ii+iii) 2,027.62 3,425.40
Less:- Inter Segment Revenue 73.95 411.58
Net Sales/Income from Operations 1,953.67 3,013.82
II. Segment Results

(PROFIT (+)/LOSS(-))
i. Consumer Durables 19.08 120.94
ii. OEM & Packaged Air-conditioning 51.97 59.74
iii. Heat Exchangers & Components 25.15 66.09

Sub:- Total (i+ii+iii) 96.20 246.77
Less:- i. Finance Cost 66.55 118.89

ii. Other un-allocable expenditure net of un-allocable Income (16.42) 8.91
iii. Exceptional Items - -

Operating Profit before tax & Exceptional Item 46.07 118.97
Exceptional items {profit/loss)} 645.23 -
Profit before Tax 691.30 118.97
Tax Expense (169.07) (33.83)
Profit after Tax 522.23 85.14
III. Segment Assets* - -
IV. Segment Liabilities* - -

 *As certain assets of the Company including manufacturing facilities are often deployed interchangeably across segments, it is impractical to 
allocate these assets and liabilities segment wise.

B.  Information pertaining to Geographical Segment:
 Sale of Products (` In Crores)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Within India 1,833.19 2,903.22
Outside India 120.48 110.60
Total 1,953.67 3,013.82

Property, Plant & Equipment as per Geographical Locations
The Company has common Property, Plant & Equipment , other assets and liabilities for domestic as well as overseas market. Hence, 
separate figures for assets and liabilities have not been furnished.
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44.  Employee Benefit Expenses

 Disclosure figures of the gratuity liability of the employees, in accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits”. The present value 
of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Present Benefit Obligation-As per Actuarial Valuation (` In Crores)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Present Value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 7.08          4.78 
Acquisition Adjustment -
Reduced due to discontinuation of consumer durable business (3.48) -
Interest Cost 0.27          0.38 
Service Cost 0.57          1.56
Past service Cost including curtailment  Gains/Losses 0.42 -
Benefit Paid (0.12)          (0.31)
Total Actuarial Gain/Loss on Obligation (0.29)          0.67
Present Value of obligation as at the end of the period 4.45          7.08

* Opening Balance is reduced by ` 3.48 Crore due to discontinuation of consumer durable business. 

Fair value of Plan assets (` In Crores)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning  of the period                 -- --
Actual return on plan assets -- --
Employer contribution -- --
Benefits paid -- --
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period -- --

The Amount recognized in the Income Statement (` In Crores)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Service Cost 0.99          1.56 
Interest Cost 0.27 0.38
Expenses recognized in the Income Statement 1.26          1.94

Net Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet (` In Crores)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Present Value of obligation at end (4.45)          (7.08)
Fair Value of Plan Assets -                            -   
Unfunded Liability /Provision in Balance Sheet (4.45)        (7.08)

Re-measurement (gain)/ loss recognized in other comprehensive income (` In Crores)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Net cumulative unrecognized  actuarial gain/(loss) opening - -
Actuarial gain / (loss) for the year on PBO 0.29 (0.68)
Actuarial gain /(loss) for the year on Asset - -
Unrecognized  actuarial gain/(loss) at the end of the year 0.29 (0.68)
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Principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligation (` In Crores)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

i)     Discounting Rate                                7.71 7.50

ii)    Future salary Increase                          8.00 8.00

iii)   Retirement Age  (Years) 60 60

iv)   Mortality  rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of IALM (2006 - 08)

v)    Ages Withdrawal
Rate (%)

Withdrawal
Rate (%)

      Up to 30 Years        3 3

      From 31 to 44 years        2 2

      Above 44 years       1 1

Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation. (` In Crores)

Particulars 31.03.2017

a) Impact of the change in discount rate

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period             4.45 

Impact due to increase of  0.50%              (0.25)

Impact due to decrease of  0.50 % 0.27

b) Impact of the change in salary increase  

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period             4.45 

a) Impact due to increase of  0.50%            0.27 

b) Impact due to decrease of  0.50 %            (0.25)

Previous Year figures are not comparable as previous figure includes Consumer Durable Business transferred during the year. 

45.  Capital Management

 For the purposes of Company’s capital management, capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company 
and all other equity reserves. The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going 
concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

 The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the 
Company. 

 The Company reviews the capital structure of the Company on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the Company considers 
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.

 The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

 (` In Crores)

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

Debt 474.48 1,105.45

Less: Cash and bank balances (19.15) (89.64)

Net debt 455.33 1,015.81

Total equity 1,305.62 921.35

Equity and net debt 1,760.95 1,937.16

Gearing ratio (Net Debt/Capital and Net Debt) 25.86% 52.44%



 Financial Statements >> Standalone Financials

109

46.  Financial Instruments

 a) Financial instruments by category                                                                               
 (` In Crores)

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Measured at amortized cost
a) Cash and cash equivalent including other bank balance  20.15 90.57 
b) Loan 11.38 15.03 
c) Other financial assets 87.88 47.11 
d) Trade receivable 658.79 693.60 
Fair value through profit and loss
Forward contracts 0.35 -
Fair value through Other Compressive Income
Investment in equity Instrument 2.89 2.25
Investment in Subsidiary at cost as per Ind AS27   
Investment in Mutual fund 0.13 0.13
Investment in Subsidiaries (Net of impairment) 103.28 106.07 
Total 884.85 954.77 
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortized cost
a) Non current borrowing -   50.95
b) Short term borrowing 473.73 1,025.08
b) Trade payable 352.20 133.02
c) Other financial liability 9.34 125.67
Sub total 835.27  1,334.72
Fair value through profit and loss   
Forward contracts -   1.55
Total 835.27 1,269.59

b) Fair value measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
(` In Crores)

Particulars Fair value as at Fair value 
hierarchy

Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

Financial Assets

Security deposit 1.78 2.80 Level 2 Discounted cash flow at a discount rate that 
reflects the company's current borrowings rate 
at the end of reporting period.

Investment in equity 2.59 1.95 Level 1 Based on quoted market price in active markets

Forwards Contracts 0.35 - Level 1 Based on quoted price for similar assets and 
liabilities in active markets

Financial Liabilities

Borrowing 0.75 80.38 Level 2 Discounted estimated cash flow through the 
expected life of the borrowings

Forwards contracts - 1.55 Level 1 Based on quoted price for similar assets and 
liabilities in active markets



Leel Electricals Limited >> 

110 Annual Report 2017-18

c) The fair values of current debtors, bank balances, current creditors and current borrowings are assumed to approximate their 
carrying amounts due to the short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities.

(` In Crores)

Particulars Carrying value

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
March 31, 2017

i) Financial assets - Current

Trade receivables 658.79 693.60 

Cash and Bank balances 20.15 90.57 

Loans 9.59 8.13 

Other Financial assets (including forward contract) 87.90 46.90 

ii) Financial liabilities - Current   

Trade payables 352.20 133.02 

Other Financial liabilities (including forward contract) 9.34 125.67

47.  Financial risk management objectives and policies

 The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The 
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include 
loans, trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its operations.

 The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company is 
exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’s focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets 
and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 

 The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized as below.

 a) Market risk

 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk 
and commodity price risk.   

 i) Currency rate risk

 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the 
Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in foreign currency).  The Company holds derivative 
financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and option contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates 
on foreign currency exposures. The exchange rate between the rupee and foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent 
years and may fluctuate substantially in the future. Consequently, the results of the Company’s operations are adversely affected 
as the rupee appreciates/ depreciates against these currencies.

 Derivative financial instruments

 The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign currency forward and option contracts to mitigate the risk of 
changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counter party for these contracts is generally a bank or a financial 
institution. These derivative financial instruments are valued based on quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active 
markets or inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.
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 Nominal amount of derivative contracts entered into by the Company and outstanding as on March 31, 2018 is ` 86.96 Crores 
(Previous year ` 72.37 Crores). Category wise breakup is given below): 

(` In Crores)

S. No. Particulars As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
March 31, 2017

1. Forward Contract 86.96 72.37

2. Currency Swap NIL NIL

3. Interest Rate Swap NIL NIL

4. Option NIL NIL

 ii) Interest rate risk

 Interest rate is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long 
term debt obligation at floating interest rates. The Company’s borrowings outstanding as at March 31, 2018 comprise of fixed rate 
loans and accordingly, are not expose to risk of fluctuation in market interest rate.

 iii) Commodity price risk

 The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities. Its operating activities require the ongoing manufacture of 
industrial and domestic air conditioners and therefore require a continuous supply of copper and Aluminum being the major input 
used in the manufacturing. Due to the significantly increased volatility of the price of the Copper and aluminum, the Company has 
entered into various purchase contracts for these material for which there is an active market. The Company’s Board of Directors 
has developed and enacted a risk management strategy regarding commodity price risk and its mitigation. The Company partly 
mitigated the risk of price volatility by entering into the contract for the purchase of these material based on average price of for 
each month.

 b) Credit risk

 Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading 
to a financial loss. The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade 
receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers.

 Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit 
risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit 
limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. 

 Trade receivables may be analyzed as follows:                                                                            
 (` In Crores)

Age of Receivables As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Due less than 6 months 587.85 687.11
Due more than 6 months 74.25         8.20 
Sub Total 662.10  695.31 
Less: Allowance for expected Credit Loss on Trade Receivable (3.31)         (1.71) 
Total 658.79     693.60 

 An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on trade receivables by lifetime expected credit loss method based 
on provision matrix.                                                                   

 (` In Crores)

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Balance at beginning of the year 1.71      1.44
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at 
lifetime expected credit losses

1.60     0.27

Balance at end of the year 3.31    1.71
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 c) Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time. The Company’s 
objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and liquidity requirements. The Company closely 
monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate source of financing through 
the use of short term bank deposits and cash credit facility. Processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior 
management. Management monitors the Company’s liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash 
flows. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to its debt and concluded it to be low.

 The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed 
repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the 
earliest date on which the company can be required to pay. 

(` In Crores)
Particulars Weighted average 

effective interest rate (%)
Within 1 year 1-5 years Total Carrying 

amount
As at March 31, 2018
Borrowings (including 
current maturities of long 
term debt)

- 0.75 - 0.75 0.75

Short term borrowings - 473.73 - 473.73 473.73
Trade payable - 352.20 - 352.20 352.20
Other financial liabilities 
(excluding current maturities 
of long term debt)

- 8.59 - 8.59 8.59

Total - 835.26 - 835.26 835.26

(` In Crores)

Particulars Weighted average 
effective interest rate (%)

Within 1 year 1-5 years Total Carrying 
amount

As at March 31, 2017

Borrowings (including 
current maturities of long 
term debt)

11.29%      29.43 50.95        80.38            80.38

Short term borrowings -       1,025.08                -      1,025.08      1,025.08 

Trade payables -          133.02                    -       133.02         133.02 

Other financial liabilities 
(excluding current maturities 
of long term debt)

- 96.24                    -   96.24 96.24

Total - 1,283.77 50.95 1,334.72 1,334.72

48.  Exceptional Item and Discontinued operation

 a.  Exceptional Item

 1. In May 2018, Noske Kaeser Rail and Vehicle Germany Gmbh, a wholly owned subsidiary has filed insolvency. The Company 
does not expect any further recovery of loan, investment and other advances and has fully provided for the value of 
Investments, Loans and advances given and other advances as per detail given below:

 (` In Crores)

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Impairment in the value of investment 3.75 -
Allowance for doubtful loans 12.54 -
Allowance for doubtful other advances 1.29 -
Total 17.58 -
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 2. The Company has sold its Consumer Durables Business comprising of business of importing, trading, marketing, exporting, 
distribution, sale of air conditioners, televisions, washing machines and other household appliances and assembling of 
televisions under the brand “LLOYD” and all of the rights, title, interest and assets, licenses, intellectual property including 
the brand, logo, trade mark “LLOYD” as a going concern on slump sale basis to Havells India Limited. The said transaction 
was concluded on May 08, 2017 for a consideration of ` 1,550 Crores subject to the closing adjustments.

  Post the transaction, the Company’s OEM business would however continue to supply room air conditioners to the Havells 
India Limited as a third party supplier. Further, the sale of the Consumer Durables Business does not have any impact on the 
Company’s existing B2B air conditioning business.

  Pursuant to aforesaid sale, the Company has also changed its name from ‘Lloyd Electric & Engineering Ltd.’ to ‘LEEL Electricals 
Ltd.’ with the approval of Central Government dated May 23, 2017. The gain on sale of consumer durable business in respect 
of the activity attributable to above discontinuing operation included in the financial statement under the Exceptional item 
is as follows:

 (` In Crores)

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Gain on sale of consumer durable business                    662.80                           -   
Tax Expense                    (152.95) - 
Gain on sale of consumer durable business after tax                    509.85 -   

  Thus, summary of Net Exceptional Item is as follows:

 (` In Crores)

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Diminution in value of investment in subsidiary company                    (17.58) -   
Gain on sale of consumer durable business                    662.80 -   
 Total                    645.23  -
Tax Expense                    (152.95) - 
Gain on sale of consumer durable business after tax                    492.28 -   

 3.  The Company sold its Consumer Durable Business as a going concern basis for an enterprise value of ` 1550.00 crores 
on cash free debt free basis which was inclusive of pre-determined net working capital. Of this, a total of ` 1458.00 
crores of the consideration have been received and balance, as per terms of business transfer agreement (BTA) was to be 
released upon finalization of the closing financials as at 8th May’17, i.e. date of the transfer of business, after appropriate 
adjustments. Since the business sold was as ongoing concern basis, few of the final adjustment/reconciliation has been 
pending finalization with the buyer and considering the impact thereof, the Company, has arrived at the gain arising from 
the deal as per prudent accounting norms. Accordingly, the gain has been computed considering the impact of assets and 
liabilities transferred in terms of BTA, unserviceable left over inventory and unrealizable receivables of the discontinued 
business, deal associated cost/expenses, impact of financial obligations pertaining to 10 years of prior operations arising 
under E-waste Management Rules, which has been made mandatory with retrospective effect, post the BTA finalization. 
The total impact of all the above factors comes to ` 887 Crores, resulting in Profit of ` 662.80 Crores arising from the sale of 
Consumer Durable Business to Havells India Ltd., as stated in table appended above.

  The revenue and expenses in respect of the activity attributable to above discontinuing operation included in the financial 
statement are as follows.

 (` In Crores)

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Profit & loss from discontinuing operation
Revenue                    423.53 -   
Expenses                    (412.33) -   
Profit before tax                       11.20 
Income tax expenses                         (3.36) -   
Profit from discontinuing operation                         7.84 -   
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49.  Dividend Paid and Proposed    
Dividend paid during the year:  (` In Crores)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Special Dividend (one time Dividend)                                                                              80.67 -
Corporate Dividend Tax on Special dividend 16.42 -
Final Dividend paid 6.05 4.71
Corporate Dividend Tax on Final Dividend 1.23 0.96
Total 104.37 5.67

Proposed Dividends on equity shares:  (` In Crores)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Special dividend (One time dividend) - 80.67
Corporate Dividend Tax on Special dividend - 16.42
Final Dividend for the year ended March 31, 2017 - 6.05
Corporate Dividend Tax on proposed dividend - 1.23
Total - 104.37

50.  Income Tax
a)  Income Tax Expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss comprises  (` In Crores)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Current Income Tax Charge on : 162.06           36.20 
    Continued Operation 5.75 36.20
    Discontinued Operation 3.36 -
    Exceptional Item 152.95 -
Mat Credit Adjustment -                  -   
Earlier year tax adjustment 5.31                  -   
Deferred Tax -                  -   
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 1.70           (2.37)
Income tax Expense reported in the statement of profit & loss 169.07           33.83 
Other Comprehensive Income   
Re-measurement (gains)/losses on defined benefit plan           (0.14)             0.23 
Income tax related to items recognized in OCI during the year           (0.14)             0.23 
   
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's 
domestic tax rate:

  

Accounting  Operating Profit before tax 46.07         118.97 
Other Exceptional Profit 645.23                  -   
Applicable Normal tax rate 34.608% 34.608%
Applicable Special tax rate 23.072% 0.0%
Computed tax Expense         164.88           41.17 
Income not considered for tax purpose         (12.55)         (18.90)
Expense not allowed for tax purpose           16.73           11.56 
Income tax charged to Statement of Profit and Loss         169.07           33.83 
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b)  Deferred Tax  (` In Crores)

Particulars 31-Mar-17 Recognized in 
Profit and loss

Recognized in 
Other Equity

Recognized in other 
comprehensive 

income

31-Mar-18

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:

Due to Depreciation           (1.99)            (1.52)           (34.49)                        -           (38.00)

Gratuity & Other Provision             0.86            (0.16)                    -                         (0.13)             0.57 

Allowance for doubtful debts             0.59               0.55                    -                          -                1.14 

Financial assets and liabilities             0.37            (0.58)                    -                          -              (0.21)

Financial liability- provision for e-waste*                  -            (17.74)                    -           (17.74)

Land Revaluation           (0.12)                   -                      -                          -              (0.12)

Others           (0.36)                   -                      -                          -              (0.36)

Total           (0.65)          (19.45)           (34.49)                       (0.13)        (54.72)

* Recognized in Profit and Loss Account under the head Exceptional Items.
 (` In Crores)

Particulars 31-Mar-16 Recognized in 
Profit or loss

Recognized in other 
comprehensive 

income

31-Mar-17

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:

Due to Depreciation (2.99) 1.00                       -    (1.99)

Gratuity & Other Provision  -   0.63 0.23 0.86

Allowance for doubtful debts 0.50 0.09                       -              0.59 

Financial assets and liabilities (0.28) 0.65                       -              0.37 

Land Revaluation (0.12) -                         -       (0.12)

Others (0.36) -                         -           (0.36)

Total (3.25)  2.37      0.23       (0.65)

51. Corporate Social Responsibility

 As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has to incur at least 2% of average net profits 
of the preceding three financial years towards Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”). Accordingly, a CSR committee has been 
formed for carrying out CSR activities as per the Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has contributed a sum of  
` 3.13 crores (March 31, 2017: ` 1.36 crores) towards this cause and debited the same to the Statement of Profit And Loss. The 
funds are primary allocated to Pandit Kanahaya Lal Punj Trust (PKLP Trust), a registered trust, acting as an implementing agency 
of the Company, towards various activities of Corporate Social Responsibility as prescribed under section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

(` In Crores)

Details of CSR Expenditure: As at March 
31, 2018

As at March 
31, 2017

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 2.32 2.07

b) Amount spent during year ended March 31, 2018

Amount spent Yet to be spent Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Contribution to PKLP trust  
(a registered trust)

3.13 1.36 - 0.71 3.13 2.07
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52. Information pursuant to G.S.R. 308( E) dated 30th March 2017 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs

 The disclosures regarding details of specified bank notes held and transacted during 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 
has not been made since the requirement does not pertain to financial year ended 31 March 2018. Corresponding amounts as 
appearing in the audited Ind AS financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2017 have been disclosed.

Particulars SBNs* Other denomination notes** Total

Closing cash in hand as on  8 November, 2016 0.29 0.24 0.53

(+)Permitted receipts - 0.26 0.26

(-)Permitted payments - 0.26 0.26

(-)Amount deposited in Banks 0.29 0.00 0.29

Closing cash in hand as on 30 December, 2016 - 0.24 0.24

 *For the purposes of this clause, the term ‘Specified Bank Notes’ shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of India, in 
the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number S.O. 340(E), dated the 8th November, 2016. 

 ** rounded off

53.  All leases are cancellable, thus there are nil future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases.

54.  The comparative figures have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with 
current year numbers.

55.  Notes ‘1’ to ‘54’ form an integral part of accounts and are duly authorized.
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